
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Sharon Thomas / 01352 702324
sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Dave Mackie (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Janet Axworthy, Marion Bateman, Sean Bibby, Geoff Collett, 
Ian Dunbar, Mared Eastwood, Veronica Gay, Dennis Hutchinson, Tudor Jones, 
Brian Lloyd, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton a David Wisinger
(+ 1 Swydd wag)

21 Tachwedd 2017

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol a 
fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 2.00 pm Dydd Llun, 27ain Tachwedd, 2017 yn Ystafell 
Bwyllgor Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau canlynol

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 

yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 14)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfodydd ar 25 Medi 

a 9 Hydref 2017.

4 GWYDNWCH CYMUNEDOL A STRATEGAETH BUDD CYMUNEDOL 
(Tudalennau 15 - 32)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) - Aelod Cabinet dros Reolaeth 
Gorfforaethol ac Asedau

Pwrpas: Darparu trosolwg byr o waith i adeiladu ar waith blaenorol i 
ddatblygu’r sector cymdeithasol drwy ddatblygu menter 
gymdeithasol.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

5 SAFONAU LLYFRGELLOEDD CYHOEDDUS CYMRU: ADOLYGIAD 
PERFFORMIAD 2016/17 (Tudalennau 33 - 44)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) - Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg

Pwrpas: I amlinellu cynnydd darparu gwasanaeth llyfrgell yn erbyn 
Safonau Llyfrgelloedd Cyhoeddus Cymru.

6 CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR 2017/18 - MONITRO CANOL BLWYDDYN 
(Tudalennau 45 - 58)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol 1), Prif Swyddog (Newid 
Sefydliadol 2) - Aelod Cabinet dros Reolaeth Gorfforaethol ac Asedau, Aelod 
Cabinet dros Addysg

Pwrpas: Adolygu’r cynnydd wrth gyflawni gweithgareddau, lefelau 
perfformiad a lefelau risg presennol fel y nodwyd yng Nghynllun 
y Cyngor 2017/18.

7 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 59 - 64)
Adroddiad Adroddiad Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu yr Cymuned ac Addysg -

Pwrpas: Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid 
Sefydliadol.

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU NEWID SEFYDLIADOL
25 MEDI 2017

Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol Cyngor Sir 
y Fflint a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Bwyllgora Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug 
ddydd Llun, 25 Medi 2017.

YN BRESENNOL: Cynghorydd David Mackie (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorwyr: Geoff Collett, Ian Dunbar, Mared Eastwood, Veronica Gay, 
Tudor Jones, Brian Lloyd, Paul Shotton a David Wisinger

YMDDIHEURIADAU: Y Cynghorwyr Marion Bateman a Sean Bibby.

CYFRANWYR: Y Cynghorwyr Billy Mullin, Aelod Cabinet Rheoli Corfforaethol 
ac Asedau; y Cynghorydd Ian Roberts, Aelod Cabinet Addysg, y Prif 
Weithredwr a’r Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol).

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL: Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu Cymuned ac 
Addysg a’r Arweinydd Tîm – Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor.

14. DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD

Datganodd y Cynghorydd Veronica Gay gysylltiad personol yn eitem rhif 
4 ar y rhaglen ‘Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol - Adolygu Cynnydd' gan ei bod 
yn aelod o Drosglwyddiad Asedau Cymunedol (TAC) Canolfan Gymunedol 
Sandy Lane.

Datganodd y Cynghorydd gysylltiad personol yn eitem rhif 4 ar y rhaglen 
‘Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol – Adolygu Cynnydd’ gan ei fod yn Gadeirydd 
Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon ac yn Landlord Llyfrgell a chaffi Treffynnon.

15. COFNODION

Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y cyfarfod ar 17 Gorffennaf 2017.

Holodd y Cynghorydd Dunbar a oedd diweddariad ar y cynlluniau ar 
gyfer Camau 3 a 4 Neuadd y Sir.  Darparodd y Prif Weithredwr rywfaint o 
wybodaeth gefndir ac eglurodd fod Cymalau 3 a 4 Neuadd y Sir yn wag yn 
bennaf, ac wedi cydgrynhoi o fewn Cymalau 1 a 2. Roedd ystyriaeth yn cael ei 
rhoi rŵan i drosglwyddo’r gweithlu yma yn rhannol i Unity House, Ewlo.  Roedd 
achos busnes ar gyfer newid darpariaeth gofod swyddfa yn cael ei ddatblygu. 

PENDERFYNWYD:

Cymeradwyo’r cofnodion fel cofnod cywir a’u llofnodi gan y Cadeirydd.

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



16. TROSGLWYDDO ASEDAU CYMUNEDOL – ADOLYGIAD CYNNYDD

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Trefniadol) adroddiad a eglurodd mai 
hon oedd trydedd flwyddyn gweithrediad a chefnogaeth y cynllun Trosglwyddo 
Asedau Cymunedol (TAC).

Mae yna rhai trosglwyddiadau asedau allweddol ar raddfa fawr, yn 
nodedig Pwll Nofio Cei Connah a oedd bellach yn cael ei redeg a’i reoli gan 
Cambrian Aquatics, ac yn fwy diweddar Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon, sef yr 
ased fwyaf a mwyaf cymhleth a drosglwyddwyd hyd yma.

Roedd y Cyngor yn dal i fod wedi ymrwymo i gefnogi’r rhaglen TAC ac 
wedi cynnal nifer o adolygiadau blwyddyn un fel rhan o’i ymrwymiad i ddeall eu 
hymrwymiad parhaus a’u cyfraniad at Fuddion Cymunedol.

Roedd yr adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion asedau eraill a oedd wedi 
bwrw ymlaen drwy gwblhau cyfreithiol neu a oedd yn cwblhau’r camau 
cyfreithiol terfynol.  Awgrymodd y Prif Swyddog y gallai adborth gan rai o’r 
grwpiau yn y rhaglen CAT fod yn rhan o gyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
yn y dyfodol lle gallent fynd a siarad am eu prosiectau eu hunain a oedd wedi 
eu cefnogi. 

Roedd y grwpiau yn datblygu setiau o sgiliau o fewn eu pwyllgorau lleol 
a oedd yn drosglwyddadwy ac a greodd wydnwch cymunedol.  Roedd hwn yn 
gysyniad pwysig ac yn ychwanegu gwerth ar y broses TAC drwy greu 
cymunedau mwy gwydn a oedd yn gallu cefnogi ei gilydd drwy ddatblygu sgiliau 
newydd, hyder a gwybodaeth. 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Dunbar ei fod yn falch gyda’r TAC ar Bwll Nofio 
Cei Connah a gofynnodd sut yr oedd yn cael ei ariannu.  Eglurodd y Prif 
Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) fod cyfarfod wedi digwydd yr wythnos flaenorol 
gyda Cambrian Aquatics ac roedd yn falch i nodi fod cynnydd sylweddol wedi 
bod yn y nifer o wersi nofio sy’n cael eu rhoi ers i’r TAC ddigwydd.  Dywedodd 
fod y cytundeb ariannu gan y Cyngor wedi bod am dair blynedd ac roedd 
bellach yn ei drydedd flwyddyn.  Roedd Cynllun Busnes wedi ei awgrymu am y 
tair blynedd nesaf ond roedd sefyllfa ariannol Cambrian Aquatics yn gadarn.  
Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Dunbar ar Randiroedd Lôn y Felin 
yng Nghei Connah, dywedodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Trefniadol) fod hyn wedi 
ei drosglwyddo i’r Cyngor Tref fel bod yr endid cyfreithiol yn bodoli gyda’r 
Cyngor Tref.

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd Shotton yr adroddiad a chanmol Cambrian 
Aquatics am y gwaith roeddynt wedi ei wneud ers y TAC, gan gyfeirio at y clwb 
nofio ffyniannus.  Dywedodd hefyd fod cynnydd da’n cael ei wneud yng Nghlwb 
Ieuenctid Cei Connah.  Mewn ymateb i sylw gan y Cynghorydd Shotton, 
dywedodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Trefniadol) fod cynllun ‘Ein Gardd Gefn’ Parc 
Golftyn yn rhan o gais loteri a gefnogwyd gan y Cyngor.

Croesawodd y Prif Weithredwr y cynnydd rhyfeddol oedd wedi ei wneud 
gyda TAC.  Gwnaeth sylw ar y cynnig gan Lywodraeth Cymru (LlC) y dylid 

Tudalen 4



cynnal adolygiad sylfaenol ar swyddogaeth Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned.  
Awgrymwyd y gallai Sir y Fflint ymateb drwy nodi fod cynnal TACau YN 
swyddogaeth allweddol iddynt bellach oedd a gwneud cais iddynt allu tynnu ar 
gyllid canolog am y gefnogaeth honno.

PENDERFYNWYD:

 (a) Dylai’r Pwyllgor nodi'r adroddiad a chefnogi’r gwaith a wnaed mewn 
perthynas â’r rhaglen waith Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol; a

 (b) Dylid nodi’r swyddogaeth gefnogol y gall Trosglwyddo Asedau 
Cymunedol ei chyflawni wrth gefnogi Gwydnwch Cymunedol.

17. CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR 2017-23

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) adroddiad Cynllun y 
Cyngor 2017-23 a oedd wedi’i adolygu a’i ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu prif 
flaenoriaethau'r Cyngor ar gyfer tymor 5 mlynedd y weinyddiaeth newydd.

Roedd strwythur y Cynllun yn parhau'r un fath â chynlluniau blaenorol a 
bellach yn cynnwys chwe blaenoriaeth ac is-flaenoriaethau perthnasol.  Mae’r 
chwe blaenoriaeth yn cymryd golwg hirdymor ar brosiectau ac uchelgeisiau 
dros y pum mlynedd nesaf.

Cyfeiriodd at flaenoriaeth ‘Cyngor wedi’i Gysylltu’ a’r cysylltiadau â 
Throsglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol (TAC) a Modelau Cyflenwi Amgen (MCA).  
Roedd hwn yn gyfle i'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol ddarparu 
unrhyw adborth ar feysydd penodol i’r Cabinet eu hystyried cyn eu cyflwyno i’r 
Cyngor Sir.

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Shotton fod effaith diwygio'r gyfundrefn les yn 
bryder iddo yn ogystal â mynediad at wasanaethau digidol.  Roedd Credyd 
Cynhwysol yn system ar lein felly croesawodd y mesur ar ‘Cyngor Cefnogol: 
Diogelu pobl rhag tlodi’ o Gyflawni Cyllidebau Personol a Gwasanaethau 
Cefnogaeth Ddigidol’ a oedd yn ymwneud ag effaith lleol cyflwyno'r gwasanaeth 
Credyd Cynhwysol llawn.’

Ar ‘Cyngor Cefnogol: Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd 
Cymunedol Integredig’, teimlai’r Cynghorydd Jones y dylid dileu'r geiriau ‘yn y 
cartref’ o Effaith 1) Galluogi mwy o bobl i fyw’n annibynnol ac yn dda yn y 
cartref, gan nodi esiamplau lle’r oedd pobl yn byw’n annibynnol ac yn dda, ond 
nid o reidrwydd yn y cartref, ond mewn lleoedd fel Llys Jasmine.  Eglurodd y 
Prif Weithredwr nad oedd y geiriau ‘yn y cartref’ yn llythrennol a chydnabuwyd 
mai mater personol oedd i bobl ddewis ble i fyw.

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Jones, eglurodd yr Aelod 
Cabinet Addysg, mewn perthynas â’r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg 
(CSCMA), roedd yn bwysig fod ysgolion presennol yn parhau’n hyfyw ac yn 
anelu at wella, ynghyd â’r nod i gynyddu nifer y cyfleusterau lle’r oed d y 
Gymraeg yn cael ei darparu. 

Tudalen 5



Ar ‘Cyngor Gwyrdd: Datblygu Cynaliadwy a Rheoli Amgylcheddol’, 
Adran 3: Cynyddu potensial asedau’r Cyngor am effeithlonrwydd ynni, 
dywedodd y Cynghorydd Jones nad oedd unrhyw gyfeiriad at sut y byddai 
defnydd o ynni yn cael ei leihau.  Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) 
y broses o reoli systemau ar y campws, rhai ohonynt yn cael eu gweithredu o 
bell ac roedd yn bwysig fod gweithwyr yn ymwybodol o’r neges ‘dim cost / cost 
isel’  Cytunwyd y byddai’r geiriau ‘Rheoli / lleihau defnydd y Cyngor o ynni ac 
felly costau’ yn cael eu hargymell i’r Cabinet eu hystyried.

Ar 'Cyngor sy'n Gwasanaethu: Gwella Rheolaeth Adnoddau, Adran 5: 
Strategaeth Ddigidol a Strategaethau Cwsmeriaid, gwnaeth y Cynghorydd 
Jones sylw ar y problemau parhaus oedd yn wynebu pentrefi yn ei ward wrth 
geisio cael mynediad i’r rhyngrwyd.  Roedd nifer o fusnesau’n gweithredu yn yr 
ardaloedd hynny ac yn dibynnu ar gysylltu â’r rhyngrwyd nad oedd yn bosibl ei 
gael ar hyn o bryd.  Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr fod barn debyg wedi ei mynegi 
mewn cyfarfod diweddar o’r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Adnoddau 
Corfforaethol ac y dylai’r Cyngor fod yn fwy dylanwadol o ran y darparwyr 
isadeiledd a rhwydweithiau.

Cytunodd y Cynghorydd Gay â barn y Cynghorydd Jones a nododd fod 
y gwasanaethau yn anghyson yn Saltney oherwydd bod y ffin mor agos.  
Teimlai y dylai fod gan bobl fynediad i’r rhyngrwyd fan lleiaf.  

Cytunodd y byddai’r geiriau ‘Gwell mynediad i isadeiledd digidol i gartrefi 
a busnesau ar draws y Sir' yn cael eu hargymell i'r Cabinet eu hystyried.

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd Dunbar yr adroddiad a’r blaenoriaethau a’r 
is-flaenoriaethau.  Ar ‘Cyngor Cefnogol: Cartrefi Priodol a Fforddiadwy’, holodd 
a oedd unrhyw gynnydd wedi bod ar gyflawni dewisiadau ar gyfer cynlluniau tai 
rhent isel newydd ac arloesol ar gyfer pobl dan 35 oed.  Ymatebodd y Prif 
Weithredwr gan ddweud eu bod yn archwilio datrysiadau creadigol.

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Dunbar, eglurodd y Prif 
Weithredwr eu bod yn dal i edrych ar opsiynau ar sut y gellid dargyfeirio ynni o 
baneli solar y Cyngor ei hun i Alltami er mwyn i gerbydau trydanol eu defnyddio. 

Ar ‘Cyngor Uchelgeisiol: Twf y Sector Busnes ac Adfywio’, nododd y 
Cynghorydd Dunbar bwysigrwydd y flaenoriaeth hon i ddiogelu'r buddsoddiad 
sydd ei angen mewn isadeiledd ar gyfer twf rhanbarthol a lleol. 

Mynegodd y Cynghorydd Gay bryderon ar y Cynllun Moderneiddio 
Ysgolion a gofynnodd am sicrwydd fod Ysgol Uwchradd Dewi Sant yn Saltney 
wedi’i chynnwys yn y cynllun hwnnw.  Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr mai Ysgol 
Uwchradd Dewi Sant oedd y flaenoriaeth gyntaf am gyllid ym Mand B.

Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Mullin Aelodau’r Pwyllgor am eu cyfraniad at 
Gynllun y Cyngor gyda dau ychwanegiad a fyddai’n cael eu hystyried gan y 
Cabinet y diwrnod canlynol cyn y Cyngor Sir.

Tudalen 6



PENDERFYNWYD:

 (a) Bod y pwyllgor yn cefnogi strwythur, fformat a chynnwys fersiwn 
"gyhoeddus" Cynllun (Gwella) y Cyngor ar gyfer 2017-23; a

 (b) Bod y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi’r targedau a’r cerrig milltir yn y ddogfen 
Mesurau a Cherrig Milltir (atodiad 2) ynghlwm â Chynllun (Gwella) y 
Cyngor 2017-23 gyda’r sylwadau canlynol i’r Cabinet eu hystyried:

 Blaenoriaeth: Cyngor Gwyrdd
Adran 3: Cynyddu potensial asedau’r Cyngor am 
effeithlonrwydd ynni: Rheoli / lleihau defnydd y Cyngor o ynni ac 
felly costau. Ychwanegiad i’r cynnwys:

 Blaenoriaeth: Cyngor sy'n Gwasanaethu
Adran 5: Strategaeth Ddigidol a Strategaethau Cwsmeriaid: 
Gwell mynediad i gartrefi a busnesau ar draws y Sir at isadeiledd 
digidol. Ychwanegu mater cenedlaethol ar ddatblygu isadeiledd, 
fuddsoddiad y Llywodraeth, a pherfformiad cyflenwyr.  
Ychwanegiad i’r cynnwys:

18. RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL

Cyflwynodd yr Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu Cymunedol ac Addysg yr 
adroddiad Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol a oedd wedi cael ei ddiweddaru ar ôl 
cyfarfod diwethaf y Pwyllgor.

Awgrymwyd y dylid trefnu cyfarfod arbennig o’r Pwyllgor i dderbyn Cam 
1 y gyllideb a chytunwyd ar hyn. 

Awgrymodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) y dylid gwahodd 
Newydd ac Aura i ddod i gyfarfodydd ddwywaith y flwyddyn.  Byddai un cyfarfod 
yn derbyn adolygiad canol blwyddyn, gan roi esiamplau o arfer da, gyda’r ail yn 
gyfle i’r Pwyllgor dderbyn eu Cynlluniau Busnes am y flwyddyn i ddod.  
Cefnogwyd hyn.

Awgrymodd y Prif Swyddog hefyd y dylid neilltuo dau slot i’r Model 
Cyflenwi Amgen (MCA) Gofal Cymdeithasol.  Nod y cyfarfod cyntaf fyddai 
derbyn gwiriad canol blwyddyn ar eu perfformiad yn ystod y flwyddyn gydag 
esiamplau o arferion da, a byddai’r ail gyfarfod yn gyfle i’r Pwyllgor dderbyn 
Cynllun Busnes am y flwyddyn i ddod.  Wrth gefnogi’r awgrym hwnnw, 
cytunwyd hefyd y dylid gwahodd Aelodau’r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Gofal 
Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd i ddod i’r cyfarfod ar gyfer yr adolygiad MCA Gofal 
Cymdeithasol, a oedd wedi ei drefnu ar hyn o bryd ar gyfer 27 Tachwedd, gan 
nodi y gallai’r dyddiad newid.

Awgrymwyd a chytunwyd y dylid gwahodd cynrychiolydd y Cambrian 
Aquatics i’r cyfarfod ar 29 Ionawr 2018 ac y dylid cynnal y cyfarfod yn un o’r 
lleoliadau Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol (TAC).

Tudalen 7



Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i wahodd Prif Weithredwr BT i gyfarfod yn y dyfodol 
i egluro strategaeth ehangach Open Reach i Aelodau, yn dilyn pryderon 
blaenorol a fynegwyd am fynediad digidol mewn rhannau gwledig o’r Sir.  
Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd Jones y dylid trefnu hyn ar ôl i Lywodraeth Cymru 
(LlC) gyhoeddi ei ganfyddiadau yn dilyn ymarferiad ymgynghori diweddar ar 
anghenion band eang, a fyddai’n hysbysu cam nesaf cyflwyno'r gwasanaeth a 
fydd yn digwydd ddechrau 2018.

PENDERFYNWYD:

 (a) Diwygio’r Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol i adlewyrchu’r eitemau a gytunwyd 
arnynt; a

 (b) Rhoi awdurdod i’r Hwylusydd, wrth ymgynghori gyda Chadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor, amrywio’r Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol rhwng cyfarfodydd, yn ôl 
yr angen.

19. DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH) 1985 - 
YSTYRIED GWAHARDD Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

PENDERFYNWYD:

Eithrio’r wasg a’r cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod gan fod yr eitem ganlynol yn cael ei 
hystyried yn wybodaeth wedi’i heithrio yn rhinwedd paragraffau 14 Adran 4 
Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i diwygiwyd).

20. ADOLYGU MODEL DARPARIAETH AMGEN HAMDDEN A 
LLYFRGELLOEDD

Tudalen 8



Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) yr adroddiad Adolygu’r 
Model Darparu Amgen Hamdden a Llyfrgelloedd a oedd yn adolygu trefniadau 
sefydlu Aura Leisure and Libraries Ltd a ddechreuodd weithredu 
Gwasanaethau Hamdden, Llyfrgelloedd a Threftadaeth y Cyngor o 1 Medi 
2017. 

Dyma rai o atodiadau’r adroddiad:

 Yr adroddiad grymoedd dirprwyedig terfynol wedi’i lofnodi i 
gymeradwyo sefydlu;

 Y Memorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth rhwng Cyngor Sir y Fflint ac 
Aura Leisure and Libraries Ltd.; a

 Y Cytundeb Ariannu rhwng Cyngor Sir y Fflint ac Aura Leisure 
and Libraries Ltd.

Roedd Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr Aura yn bresennol i ateb unrhyw 
gwestiynau a diolchodd i’r Pwyllgor am y gwahoddiad i’r cyfarfod.  Dywedodd 
fod llawer o waith wedi ei wneud a chyfeiriodd at y berthynas gefnogol a phositif 
gyda’r Cyngor.

Croesawodd yr Aelod Cabinet Addysg yr adroddiad a dywedodd ei fod 
yn esiampl dda o bartneriaeth bositif.

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Dunbar, dywedodd y Prif 
Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) fod y strwythur hwn yn rhoi mwy o sicrwydd i 
lyfrgelloedd llai o faint.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Nodi a chefnogi’r gwaith oedd wedi ei wneud i sefydlu Model Cyflenwi Amgen 
(MCA) yn y Gwasanaethau Hamdden, Llyfrgelloedd a Threftadaeth.

21. AELODAU O’R CYHOEDD A'R WASG YN BRESENNOL

Nid oedd unrhyw aelod o’r cyhoedd na’r wasg yn bresennol.

 (Dechreuodd y cyfarfod am 10am a daeth i ben am 11.57am)

…………………………
Cadeirydd 

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU NEWID SEFYDLIADOL
9 HYDREF 2017

Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol Cyngor Sir 
y Fflint a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Bwyllgora Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug 
ddydd Llun, 9 Hydref 2017.

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd Dave Mackie (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorwyr: Janet Axworthy, Marion Bateman, Ian Dunbar, Mared 
Eastwood, Tudor Jones, Brian Lloyd, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton a David 
Wisinger.

DIRPRWYON: Y Cynghorydd Kevin Hughes (yn lle Veronica Gay)

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorwyr: Bernie Attridge a Patrick Heesom

CYFRANWYR: Y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton, Arweinydd y Cyngor ac Aelod 
Cabinet Cyllid; y Cynghorydd Billy Mullin, Aelod Cabinet Rheoli Corfforaethol 
ac Asedau; Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol 1); Prif Swyddog (Newid 
Sefydliadol 2) a’r Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol. 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL: Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu Cymunedau ac Addysg.

22. DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD

Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw gysylltiad.

23. RHAGOLWG ARIANNOL A CHAM UN Y GYLLIDEB 2018/19

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol yr adroddiad a oedd yn 
amlinellu’r rhagolwg ariannol cyfredol ar gyfer 2018/19 yn ogystal â’r pwysau 
ariannol a’r opsiynau newydd ar gyfer y portffolio Newid Sefydliadol. 

Diwygiwyd y rhagolwg ariannol a oedd wedi’i nodi yn adran 1.04 yr 
adroddiad, i ystyried y penderfyniadau a wnaed fel rhan o gyllideb 2017/18, a’i 
ddiweddaru â’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf o ran pwysau gan bortffolios 
gwasanaeth. Defnyddiwyd setliad yr un fath neu debyg i waelodlin ariannol 
2017/18 fel sail ar gyfer cyfrifo'r rhagolwg ar gyfer 2018/19 ac nid oedd unrhyw 
fodel ar gyfer codi lefelau Treth y Cyngor wedi’i gynnwys yn ystod y cam hwn. 

Daeth y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol i’r casgliad bod cam un y cynigion 
ar gyfer y  portffolio gwasanaeth yn cael eu cyflwyno drwy gydol mis Hydref i'w 
hadolygu gan yr holl Bwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu.  Roedd y Setliad 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru dros dro i’w gyhoeddi ar 10 Hydref, 2017. Roedd y 
setliad terfynol i’w gyhoeddi’n ddiweddarach yn y flwyddyn galendr, yn dilyn 
datganiad cyllideb Canghellor y Trysorlys ar 22 Tachwedd 2017.  

Tudalen 11



Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol 1) i 
gyflwyno’r Datganiad Atgyfnerthu a’r Modelau Gweithredu ar gyfer y portffolio 
Newid Sefydliadol.  

Newid Sefydliadol 1
Amlinellodd y Prif Swyddog y Datganiad Atgyfnerthu, sydd ynghlwm wrth 

yr adroddiad, a oedd manylu ar yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd a oedd wedi'u 
gwneud hyd yma ac effeithiau’r arbedion effeithlonrwydd hyn ar y 
gwasanaethau o fewn y portffolio Newid Sefydliadol 1.  Manylodd y Prif 
Swyddog ar yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd arfaethedig o £416,000 ar gyfer 2018-
19, sydd wedi’u nodi ym Model Gweithredu’r Dyfodol yn Atodiad 1. Roedd yr 
arbedion effeithlonrwydd arfaethedig yn cynnwys, parhau â chynllun busnes y 
flwyddyn flaenorol ar gyfer Hamdden, Llyfrgelloedd a Threftadaeth, i ddatblygu 
cwmni sy’n eiddo i’r gweithwyr.

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton, Arweinydd y Cyngor, y 
Datganiadau Atgyfnerthu a oedd yn cael eu cyflwyno i bob Pwyllgor Trosolwg 
a Chraffu. Roeddent yn ddefnyddiol iawn ar gyfer meincnodi’r arbedion 
effeithlonrwydd hyd yma ac amlygu’r risgiau i feysydd gwasanaeth.  Amlinellodd 
y bwlch cyllido presennol o £11.7M gan nodi mai cyfanswm cynigion cyllideb 
cam un ar hyn o bryd oedd £3M a oedd felly’n amlygu’r heriau i ddod.  Soniodd 
hefyd am yr angen i barhau i lobïo’r Llywodraeth Genedlaethol i amlygu 
effeithiau caledi.          

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y broses ymgynghori ar y gyllideb gyda 
Phwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu a oedd yn rhoi cyfle i Aelodau ddylanwadu ar 
benderfyniadau terfynol o ran y gyllideb.

Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Ian Dunbar i’r swyddogion am y diweddariad o 
ran y sefyllfa ariannol ac fe groesawodd  y cynnydd o ran nifer yr ymweliadau i 
lyfrgelloedd Sir Y Fflint. Hefyd, fe wnaeth sylw ar y ffaith bod llai o arian yn cael 
ei roi i Theatr Clwyd gan Gyngor Celfyddydau Cymru a gofynnodd a fyddai’n 
rhaid i’r Cyngor gyfrannu mwy o arian oherwydd hyn.  Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog 
bod Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymru hefyd o dan bwysau i ganfod arbedion 
effeithlonrwydd a lleihau ei gyllideb. Dywedodd y byddai’n rhaid i’r Theatr ddelio 
ag unrhyw ostyngiad o ran cyllid gan Gyngor Celfyddydau Cymru ac ar hyn o 
bryd roedd yn gweithio ar ddewisiadau i wneud y mwyaf o incwm. 

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn am daliadau gwasanaeth gan y Cynghorydd 
Paul Shotton, dywedodd y Prif Swyddog bod y ffioedd o fewn y gwasanaeth 
hamdden yn gymharol â siroedd eraill ar draws Gymru. Amlinellodd ffyrdd eraill 
i Ganolfannau Hamdden Aura greu mwy o incwm, gan gynnwys y cyfle i 
gyflwyno gweithgareddau newydd a ffioedd aelodaeth.    

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Kevin Hughes, a oedd hi’n bosibl i’r Theatr 
ystyried noddi masnachol fel ffordd o ostwng cyfraniadau ariannol y Cyngor yn 
y dyfodol. Cwestiynodd hefyd, pan fod y sesiynau nofio am ddim i unigolion 
dros 60 mlwydd oed, roedd yn sicr na fyddai gan y rhan fwyaf ohonynt ots am 
dalu am y sesiynau hyn. Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog bod y Cyngor yn darparu 
gwersi nofio am ddim i unigolion dros 60 mlwydd oed drwy gyllid Llywodraeth 

Tudalen 12



Cymru a chytunodd y dylid cynnal trafodaeth genedlaethol yn y dyfodol i asesu 
a oedd hyn yn fforddiadwy. Dywedodd hefyd bod yn Theatr yn canolbwyntio ar 
sut i wneud y mwyaf o gyllid nawdd ac elusennol yn flynyddol.        

Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol 2) i 
gyflwyno’r Datganiad Atgyfnerthu a’r Modelau Gweithredu ar gyfer y portffolio 
Newid Sefydliadol.  

Newid Sefydliadol 2
Amlinellodd y Prif Swyddog y Datganiad Atgyfnerthu, sydd ynghlwm wrth 

yr adroddiad, a oedd manylu ar yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd a oedd wedi'u 
gwneud hyd yma ac effeithiau’r arbedion effeithlonrwydd hyn ar y 
gwasanaethau o fewn y portffolio Newid Sefydliadol 2.  Manylodd y Prif 
Swyddog hefyd ar yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd arfaethedig o £286,000 ar gyfer 
2018-19, fel y nodwyd o fewn Model Gweithredu’r Dyfodol (Atodiad 2). Roedd 
yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd arfaethedig yn cynnwys ailstrwythuro 
Gwasanaethau Cynnal Eiddo Corfforaethol a Gwasanaethau Dylunio a Rheoli 
Prosiectau.

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd Ian Dunbar y cynnydd o ran nifer y prydau 
ysgol a’r nifer oedd yn manteisio ar brydau ysgol am ddim a gofynnodd a oedd 
ystyriaeth wedi’i roi i estyn gwaith Gwasanaeth Arlwyo a Glanhau NEWydd i 
weithio ar y cyd â’r Gwasanaeth Tai mewn tai gwag. Cadarnhaodd y Prif 
Swyddog y byddai’r gwaith ar eiddo gwag yn ffurfio rhan o gynllun busnes 
statudol Gwasanaeth Arlwyo a Glanhau NEWydd yn y dyfodol. 

Gwnaeth y Cynghorydd Marion Bateman sylw ar y cynigion posibl i ad-
leoli staff o Neuadd Y Sir a gofynnodd a oedd cynigion i ad-leoli staff o 
Swyddfeydd Y Fflint.  Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog bod gwaith wedi’i wneud i 
gyfuno’r gwasanaethau cymdeithasol a swyddogion tai yn Swyddfeydd y Fflint 
a bod hyn wedi caniatáu iddynt ddelio ag achosion yn brydlon.  Roedd 
ystyriaeth hefyd yn cael ei rhoi i adleoli staff o Neuadd Y Sir gan fod y gofod 
swyddfa presennol yn aneffeithlon â chostau cynnal blynyddol o oddeutu 
£1.5M.

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Tudor Jones a oedd ystyriaeth wedi'i roi i 
amddiffyn gwasanaethau mewn cymunedau pe bai'r Trosglwyddiadau Asedau 
Cymunedol yn methu yn y dyfodol.  Gwnaeth y Prif Swyddog sylw (Newid 
Sefydliadol 1) ar y prif drosglwyddiadau ased cymunedol, sef Pwll Nofio Cei 
Connah a Chanolfan Hamdden Treffynnon a dywedodd bod y Cyngor wedi 
ymrwymo i ddarparu cyllid ar eu cyfer am dair blynedd gyda bwriad o ostwng 
cyllid hwnnw dros y cyfnod o dair blynedd.  Nid yw’r gyllideb ar gyfer 2018/19 
yn cynnig gostyngiad o ran y gyllideb.  Dywedodd ei bod hi’n bwysig ystyried 
ein camau gweithredu pe byddai'r trosglwyddiad ased cymunedol yn methu a 
sicrhau bod refeniw a chefnogaeth barhaus ar gael i leihau’r risg hwnnw.  
Dywedodd bod y trosglwyddiadau ased cymunedol yn perfformio’n dda ar hyn 
o bryd.     

Gwaeth y Cynghorydd Shotton sylw ar gylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor a 
swyddogaeth y Pwyllgor hwn, sef craffu a monitro perfformiad trosglwyddiadau 

Tudalen 13



ased cymunedol.  Dywedodd bod y Cyngor wedi ymrwymo i weithio mewn 
partneriaeth gyda grwpiau cymunedol i amddiffyn a diogelu gwasanaethau.                       

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd wrth y Prif Swyddogion am eu gwaith o fewn eu 
portffolios ac fe dynnodd sylw penodol at yr effaith gadarnhaol yr oedd y 
Trosglwyddiadau Asedau Cymunedol wedi’u cael o ran diogelu gwasanaethau 
mewn cymunedau ar draws Sir Y Fflint. 

PENDERFYNWYD:

Bod y Pwyllgor yn fodlon â’r agwedd a gymerir at y Gyllideb o fewn y portffolios 
Newid Sefydliadol. 

24. AELODAU O’R CYHOEDD A'R WASG YN BRESENNOL

Nid oedd unrhyw aelod o’r cyhoedd na’r wasg yn bresennol.  

 (Dechreuodd y cyfarfod am 2.00pm a daeth i ben am 3.05pm)

…………………………
Y Cadeirydd

Tudalen 14



 ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 27th November 2017

Report Subject Community Resilience and Community Benefits Strategy

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Officers Organisational Change

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A key priority of the Council Plan is ‘A Connected Council’ with a sub priority being 
‘Resilient Communities’. The Flintshire Public Services Board has a developed a 
priority around ‘Resilient Communities. This report provides a brief overview of the 
work being done in this area building on previous work to grow the social sector 
through social enterprise development including Community Asset Transfers and 
Alternative Delivery Models. Provided at Appendix A is a draft plan for the work of 
the Flintshire Public Services Board.

The report also details Community Benefits Strategy (see Appendix 1) recently 
approved in draft by Cabinet. This strategy defines for the first time a set of 
community benefits that can be used in all types of procurement contracts but can 
also be used to assess the level of community benefit an organisation is delivering. 
The aim now is to launch this strategy as a Council, engage with the private and 
social sectors about use of this strategy, and engage with Public Service Board 
about all public sector partners in Flintshire signing up to the elements of the 
strategy that they are able to implement.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To make comment on and support the overall approach to developing 
Community Resilience.
 

2. To make comment on the draft Community Benefits Strategy and the 
approach to implementation of this strategy.

Tudalen 15

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1.01 For the last three years much work has been undertaken to grow the social 
sector through Social Enterprise Development, Community Asset 
Transfers and Alternative Delivery Models. This has resulted in a growth in 
size in the social sector which is a key requirement if communities are 
going to be able to be more resilient and solve their own problems. It 
means that communities have more organisations and individuals to go to 
for support. A key element of this growth has been to develop social 
enterprises that are of a significant scale and can support the development 
of other social enterprises e.g. Aura Leisure and Libraries, Cambrian 
Aquatics, Holywell Leisure Centre.

1.02 In summary 24 social enterprises / social organisations operating within 
Flintshire over the last year were the beneficiaries of Council support to 
help their development including the following:

 Holywell Leisure Centre 
 Toe to Toe 
 Connah's Quay Nomads 
 Buckley Boxing Club 
 RainbowBiz 
 West Flintshire Community Enterprises 
 Flintshire Counselling CIC 
 Mold Rugby Club 
 The Clocktower 
 Beyond the Boundaries CIC 
 Emotional Learning Foundation CIC 
 Amser Babi Cymraeg 
 BREW 
 Parkfields community Centre 
 Neighbourhood Economics 
 Art and Soul Tribe CIC 
 Cambria Band CIC

This work along with the Community Asset Transfer programme has 
resulted in the following assets being transferred to (or being in the last 
stages of transfer to) social enterprises / community organisations:

 Mynydd Isa community centre and library (Café Isa);
 Bistre Youth and Community Centre;
 Connahs Quay Swimming Pool (Cambrian Aquatics)
 Connahs Quay Youth Club;
 Connahs Quay Allotments (Mill Lane);
 Connahs Quay Scouts Building;
 Connahs Quay Cricket Club;
 Former Registrar’s Office, Holywell;
 Greenfield Bowling Club;
 Gwernaffield Village Hall,
 Hope Library;

Tudalen 16



 Holywell library (Toe to Toe);
 Holywell Leisure Centre
 Mancot Library;
 Maes Pennant Playing Field, Mostyn;
 Mold RFC;
 Mosytn Bowling Club,
 Scout Groups, various;
 Trelogan Community Centre.

The results of this work both developing organisations and enabling them 
to take on assets and services results in a stronger social sector working 
at a community level. For the first time this year there was a significant 
social enterprise presence at the Flintshire Business Awards with a 
number of social enterprises being applicants for Business Awards.

1.03 With an increase in the number and size of organisations in the social 
sector it enables future work to build on this stronger social sector base 
and for the sector to be recognised as valuable and business like. It also 
encourages a raised awareness across the public, private and social 
sectors about the delivery of social objectives or community benefits.

1.04 There are a range of other projects and programmes that are building on 
the good initial work to maximise increases in community resilience and 
that grow the social sector. A number of key initiatives that are supported 
by the work of the Public Services Board include:

(1) Social Prescribing Programme – To be launched in October with the 
aim of signposting people with health issues to community or activity base 
interventions rather than health treatment.

(2) Area Based Work – Revision of Communities First and work in areas 
such as Flint, Shotton and the Holway which are all now aimed at leaving 
skills in communities rather than solving problems for people. The food 
poverty work in Flint aims to leave people with the skills and resources to 
cook nutritional meals.

(3) Anti Poverty Work – A more focussed approach from this partnership 
supporting the development of digital skills, financial skills and enabling 
people to cope with in work and out of work poverty.

(4) Philanthropy and Corporate and Social Responsibility (CSR) – Bringing 
together the private and social sectors to talk about how private sector 
organisations through their CSR might support the development of the 
social sector and community benefits.  

(5) Community Shares – The issuing of shares by social organisations to 
help fund raise and create ownership of assets and services at a 
community level. This approach is being considered by a number of 
organisations.

A more detail action plan for the work of the Public Services Board is 
provided at Appendix A.

Tudalen 17



1.05 Attached at Appendix B is a draft Community Benefits Strategy that for the 
first time provides a policy for, and ways of using, the following community 
benefits that are proposed as the priority community benefits that Flintshire 
wants to see delivered.

Economic
I. Targeted recruitment

• Providing shared apprenticeship opportunities using our 
Apprenticeship Academy;

• Creating job opportunities for unemployed people from Flintshire’s 
Community First areas;

• Providing work placements and training opportunities to local 
unemployed people, to help them gain work experience to aid their 
job search;

• Providing work experience to students to help them make career 
choices.
II. Supporting procuring from Flintshire based businesses (where 

possible) to provide goods and services in the delivery of the 
contract; 

Environmental, health and social
III. Working with schools and colleges to contribute to their 

curriculum and help to promote a socially inclusive society;
IV. Where deemed appropriate, small community-focused 

contributions can be made including actual resources such as 
staff time to provide assistance / support to local community 
groups.  This would be administered through the Economy and 
Regeneration team to ensure appropriate use.

V. Provide a financial sum (where appropriate) or equivalent non-
financial benefit to deliver the strategic priorities as identified by 
Flintshire Council including but not exclusively: 

• Housing quality and renewable technologies as part of any new 
build development;

• Housing energy measures which will address fuel poverty;

• Promoting energy efficiencies and environmental awareness with 
tenants;

• Delivery of environmental initiatives including:

‣micro-energy generation;

‣reduced waste to landfill;

‣recycling of eligible materials;

‣reduced water consumption; and

‣managing business mileage.
VI. Reductions in demand for public services including health and 

social care and community safety by:

• increasing the people supported to live independently; 

Tudalen 18



• reducing permanent admissions to residential or nursing care;

• reducing avoidable hospital admissions; and

• reducing anti-social behaviour and crime.
VII. Increasing the impact of volunteers in delivering public and 

community services by:

• increasing the number of new volunteers;

• increasing the number of volunteers placed with community groups; 
and

• increasing the number of young volunteers
VIII. Increasing the impact of community businesses in delivering 

public and community services by:

• increasing the number of new community businesses established;

• increasing the number of constituted groups developing into 
community businesses; and

• increasing the number of community assets sustained.

Implementing this strategy will enable the Council to maximise community 
benefit delivery across contracts and services and work with other public 
sector partners and the social and private sectors to maximise their 
delivery of community benefits.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Financial Implications 

No additional implications.

2.02 Human Resource Implications 

No additional implications.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Consultations have bene undertaken as part of both the development of 
the Council Plan and the development of the Public Service Board 
priorities.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Key Risks and Mitigation

Tudalen 19



(1) The lack of strength of the social sector to be seen as credible and 
business like – continued support and development with business 
support and Community Asset Transfer work.

(2) The lack of buy in by public sector partners – continued 
development of this work through the Public Services Board.

(3) The lack of ownership by the private sector – engagement with the 
sector on the Community Benefits Strategy and Philanthropy and 
CSR work. 

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix A – Public Services Board Draft plan for Resilient Communities

5.02 Appendix B – Community Benefits Strategy

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None

Contact Officers: Ian Bancroft / Neal Cockerton
Telephone: 01352 704511
E-mail: ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk / neal.cockerton@flintshire.gov.uk 

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

7.03

Community Asset Transfer – The transfer of a building to a community 
organisation with a 27 year lease and peppercorn rent.

Social Enterprise – An organisation that has social objectives and uses 
any profit made for delivery of these social objectives.

Corporate and Social Responsibility – Part of the private sectors 
approach to governance that often results in the delivery of social 
outcomes and community benefits.

Tudalen 20

mailto:ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk
mailto:neal.cockerton@flintshire.gov.uk


Version 9 – 17 November 2017

1

Flintshire Public Services Board  

A Well-being Plan for Flintshire
2017 - 2023

Draft (November 2017)

Tudalen 21



Version 9 – 17 November 2017

2

Resilient Communities
This means:

 Enabling and inspiring communities to be confident, cohesive, and forward 
thinking 

 Developing an approach that ensures that when any public service is working 
in an area that additional skills and capacity are strengthened within that 
community. 

 Co-ordinating an approach across public service delivery that maximises the 
impact of community benefits.

 Further developing community ownership models including Community Asset 
Transfers (CATS), micro social enterprises and community shares. 

Why is this a priority for the partners?

 Effective, successful and resilient places have the ability to resolve their own 
problems, respond to and bounce back from economic, social and 
environmental issues.

 Resilient communities are well connected within the area and to other agencies 
and organisations outside of their community.

 A well connected community is able to work with the public agencies co-
operatively to determine priorities for that community and be a key partner in 
delivering these priorities. 

 This approach requires a workforce in the public sector that is skilled in working 
with communities to support determination of their priorities and enable their 
delivery. 

What is the evidence behind this story?

 Research shows that ‘Resilient Communities’ have support from all sectors to 
solve problems, are well connected and able to make decisions. 

 Public sector bodies have provided support and capacity to specific 
communities of need; however this work has not always been sustainable once 
the intervention ceases.  

 Public services can change the emphasis of their work in communities from 
direct support and intervention to a more co-operative style of working where 
local communities determine their own priorities and identify solutions.

What are we committed to doing?

 Learning lessons from previous community based work so that future work has 
a significant and long term impact.

 Changing our ways of working so that whenever public services work with 
communities we build on and develop the skill levels within that community.

 Working jointly with communities to understand, develop and implement long 
term aspirations and plans that build on the strengths of that community.

Tudalen 22



Version 9 – 17 November 2017

3

What specific actions will we take to support these commitments?

 Train and develop key public sector employees in these different ways of 
working.

 The Public Services Board will agree a set of community benefits1 that will 
support local communities and that can be delivered by the community and 
social organisations, public organisations, and private organisations.

 Develop opportunities for residents to be more active in their communities 
which leads to improvements in health and well-being.

 Design and develop projects with the community in areas such as the Holway, 
Flint and Shotton so that the community is able to determine the priorities and 
have the skills and capacity to continue the work in the long term. 

 Establish new tools such as ‘Community Shares’2 and ‘Social Prescribing’3 that 
enable communities to develop their local assets and improve their health and 
well-being.

 Support the development of community networks that can be co-ordinated and 
maintained by local communities.

 Change our long term physical planning for communities so that it enables the 
development of community buildings and natural and green spaces that better 
connect people. 

Where should we see an impact?

 Ways of working changed across all sectors that strengthens communities
 The strength of community and social organisations that are able to provide 

support to local people increased
 Opportunities for people to improve their health and well-being increased
 Use and appreciation of the natural environment and use of the outdoors 

increased
 Take up of economic activity by local people increased
 Quantity and quality of benefits that support local communities (‘community 

benefits’) increased

1 Delivery of added value through the Community Benefits is linked to the procurement of contractors on 
capital build programmes. They can also be delivered through grant awards and Community Asset Transfers.  
They ensure wider social, environmental and economic issues are taken into account during the project life 
cycle.  
2 Community Shares are non-transferrable, withdrawable share capital unique to Co-op and Community 
Benefit Society Legislation and can be used as a method to engage the community in becoming shareholders 
(owners) of community businesses.
3 Social Prescribing is a means of enabling primary care services to refer patients with social, emotional or 
practical needs to a range of local, non-clinical services, often provided by the voluntary and community 
sector.

Tudalen 23



Version 9 – 17 November 2017

4

Links with other priorities:

 Economy and Skills – developing skills for employment opportunities, 
reducing worklessness and the impact of social reform

 Community Safety – making communities safer

 Well-being and Independent Living – providing information and support for 
people to take responsibility for their own health and that of their own families

 Environment – developing greater access opportunities to the green 
infrastructure

Tudalen 24



Version 9 – 17 November 2017

5

Well-being and Independent Living
This means:

 Providing information and support for people to take responsibility for their own 
health and that of their families.

 Targeting interventions where individuals and families have the most to gain.
 Delivering more services closer to home.
 Building and strengthening the Care Sector.

Why is this a priority for the partners?

 There is a strong evidence base as well as a social responsibility to direct our 
focus on the prevention of ill health, reduce health inequity and accommodate 
most people’s preference to stay active and independent within their own 
community.  

 A focus on early years has the potential to bring benefits to the individual and 
reduced demand on services over the full life course.

 In order to support residents with more complex needs, we need to maintain 
and then strengthen the care sector for both care home and domiciliary service4 
provision, both of which are currently fragile.

 Life expectancy is increasing whereas an increase in healthy life expectancy is 
not assured.  The consequence is that more people are likely to require support 
in the management of chronic conditions and/or increasing dependency as a 
result of frailty or dementia for example.

 There are significant challenges in meeting current and projected workforce 
demands in both health and social care.

 The Social Services and Well-being Act reinforces the need to support 
residents to maintain good health and reduce reliance on services. 

What is the evidence behind this story?

 Influencing the development of children to maximise their health, social and 
educational development is most effective when done as early as possible.

 People born in the most deprived areas of Flintshire are, on average, likely to 
die 7 years earlier than people born in the most affluent areas of the county.

 Life expectancy is predicted to continue to improve, and the population of those 
aged 65 years is expected to grow from 31,000 in 2015 to 46,100 by 2039.

 The number of people aged 65 years and over who need to be looked after in 
a care home is expected to almost double by 2035 with the number requiring 
specialist nursing care expecting to show a significant increase. 

 The number of Flintshire residents living with dementia will rise by about 1,350 
(66%) by 2030.

 In order for Flintshire to meet the need for care home beds by 2030, a further 
554 residential care beds and 304 nursing care beds will be required.

4 Domiciliary Services are those provided to a person within their own home

Tudalen 25



Version 9 – 17 November 2017

6

What are we committed to doing?

 Provide information and support for people to take responsibility for their own 
health and that of their families and communities.

 Target work and interventions where individuals and families have the most to 
gain.

 Deliver more health and social care services closer to home.
 Build and strengthen the care sector.

What specific actions will we take to support these commitments?

 Explore and make best use of opportunities to promote mental health and 
wellbeing.

 Ensure links with other PSB priority work areas to maximise promotion of health 
and wellbeing opportunities, e.g. Get Flintshire Moving (Resilient 
Communities), combat substance misuse (Community Safety)

 Introduce the Community Resource Team and multi-agency, co-located Single 
Point of Access.

 Implement agreed Public Health priorities, with a focus on those with the most 
to gain.

 Ensure that the health needs of Looked After Children5 are assessed and met, 
including through the provision of key health promotion materials being made 
available to foster carers and residential care staff.

 Fully implement the Early Help Hub6 to support children, young people and their 
families.

 Develop and implement an “Ageing Well in Flintshire” Plan which will not only 
support people to age well but also help develop communities for the benefit of 
people of all ages.

 Develop robust pathways for care home residents requiring hospital admission 
to help them return home with minimum delay.

 Ensure that the County’s approach to regeneration supports and promotes work 
within the Care Sector.

 Increase current in house provision of bed based capacity for short term care 
and to support Discharge to Assess7 in a community setting through the use of 
pooled budgets.

 Promote and protect the health of our workforce by encouraging them to access 
opportunities to improve and maintain health (e.g. national screening 
programmes, Making Every Contact Count (MECC), flu vaccination). 

Where should we see an impact?

 Indicators of health and wellbeing in the population improved
 Indicators of health inequalities improved

5 Looked After Children are children under the care of the Local Authority
6 The Early Help Hub is a multiagency project led by the North Wales Police which aims to improve the 
‘journey’ for families at greater risk of worsening problems with an emphasis on information, advice & 
assistance
7 Discharge to Assess takes place when the person is medically fit to leave hospital and requires an assessment 
to determine the level of support they will need at home.

Tudalen 26



Version 9 – 17 November 2017

7

 Levels of care home bed and domiciliary support sustained and increased
 Number of community based or led activities to promote healthy living and 

“ageing well” increased
 Number of people supported outside of the acute hospital setting increased
 Level of information, assistance and support offered through the Single Point 

of Access and Early Help Hub increased
 Opportunities for people to move more and reduce sedentary behaviour 

increased

Links with other priorities:

 Resilient Communities – enabling and inspiring communities to become 
confident, cohesive and forward thinking

 Environment – developing greater access opportunities to the green 
infrastructure

 Economy and Skills – developing skills for employment opportunities, 
reducing worklessness and the impact of social reform

 Community Safety – tackling drugs and alcohol / reducing re-offending

Tudalen 27



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Community Benefits Strategy Final Draft for Cabinet October 2017

1 

1. Introduction and Purpose (Leader of the Council)

1.1. This Community Benefits Strategy has been developed to align with all of 
Flintshire’s Capital and Services procurement and the authority’s existing 
approaches to delivery of Community Benefits within its contracts and service 
provision.  An innovative approach is required to ensure delivery of community 
benefits, which helps to deliver the greatest economic, social or environmental 
wellbeing benefit to local communities.

1.2. The public sector in Wales spends £5.5bn per year on external goods and services, 
and Welsh Government is committed to capturing and retaining as much of the 
local investment in the local area through their Community Benefits Policy. The 
Community Benefits Strategy supports the Welsh Government’s vision that 
sustainable development will be the central organising principle for Wales. It also 
contributes to other policy areas such as the Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan, 
tackling poverty in Wales and adding to the resources for training and skills 
development.

1.3. The Wales Procurement Policy Statement sets out the procurement practices and 
actions required of all public sector organisations in Wales. Value Wales helps the 
Welsh public sector realise improved value for money through ‘smarter 
procurement’ by:

• increasing savings through collaboration;

• improving process efficiency especially through use of technology;

• protecting the economy by encouraging smaller and more local suppliers and 
seeking re-investment in local communities; and

• building procurement capability.
1.4. A key policy driver is the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 

its 7 goals including ‘A Prosperous Wales’ and ‘A More Equal Wales’.
1.5. At a local level, the Flintshire Public Service Board is developing new approaches 

to Inspiring Resilient Communities and the Community Benefits Strategy will play 
apart in the delivery of this.

1.6. The Community Benefits Strategy will help to deliver the Flintshire County Council’s 
Council Plan by contributing to:

• supporting people to manage the ongoing impact of Welfare Reform through 
helping people to claim the benefits to which they are entitled; 

• helping people to manage their financial commitments; 

• reducing the impact of rises in fuel costs through energy efficiency measures;

• developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work 
towards addressing food poverty;

• reducing demand for public services;

• growing the role of the social enterprise sector;

• increasing the impact of the voluntary sector 

• contributing to the scale and quality of apprenticeship and work experience 
provision; and

• Increasing the use of community benefit clauses in procurement.

Tudalen 29



Community Benefits Strategy Final Draft for Cabinet October 2017

2 

1.7. The Community Benefit Strategy aims to support the delivery of these strategic  
policy areas by ensuring that the procurement and delivery of capital and service 
contracts contributes to the delivery of sustainable outcomes. The Council 
procured £145m of works, goods and services in 2016/2017. 

1.8. Specific community benefit requirements will be incorporated into future 
procurement and contracts providing a clear direction of the key priorities identified 
in this Strategy and the issues to be addressed in Flintshire at the time of the 
contract. These will be progressed through the Contractor and the Procurement 
and Enterprise and Regeneration Teams within the Council, working 
collaboratively with local communities, other partners and stakeholders.

2. Aim and objectives of the Community Benefits Strategy

Aim
2.1. The aim of the strategy is to ensure greater value for money with regard to securing 

a return on the expenditure Flintshire County Council is making each year through 
service contracts and capital programmes.

Objectives
2.2. To provide a framework which ensures the inclusion of realistic and achievable 

community benefit via contractual clauses in all applicable capital programme and 
service contracts.

2.3. To provide a joined up approach to the identifying and monitoring of community 
benefits across Flintshire, ensuring maximum value for money of spend on the 
Capital programme and service budgets.

2.4. Create an internal infrastructure to avoid duplication of effort, share best practice, 
maximise opportunities for leveraging community benefits from suppliers and 
provide a more common and consistent experience for suppliers.

2.5. To ensure compliance within legislative framework when incorporating community 
benefits into the contracts and agreements.

2.6. Through guidance and the application of agreed approaches, deliver real and 
lasting benefits to our stakeholders and to grow the Flintshire economy, including  
the delivery of sustainable employment outcomes for residents.

3. Delivery approach

3.1. As part of the procurement process tenderers will be asked to set out how they will 
contribute to the community benefit objectives and will be assessed as part of the 
tender evaluation.  This will include areas such as:

• the steps to be taken to deliver community benefits;

• how these steps will ensure benefits are realised; and

• the benefit that each step will deliver to communities.
3.2. All contractual community benefits form part of the contract and suppliers have a 

contractual obligation to deliver these commitments. Appropriate contract 
conditions will be included to provide a remedy for failure to deliver contractual 
community benefits.

3.3. Community benefits will be delivered through specific requirements stipulated 
within the specification. This will be done in one of three ways.

Tudalen 30



Community Benefits Strategy Final Draft for Cabinet October 2017

3 

(i) Through contract clauses;
(ii) Through specifying as outcomes and outputs core to the contract for a 
contractor to tender against;
(iii) Through specifying as ways of working associated with the contract for a 
contractor to tender against.

3.4. Proportionality will be applied in relation to the level of Community Benefits to the 
value of the contract.  As a guide Flintshire Council would expect for contracts of a 
value of £1m or more:

• 1 Apprenticeship per £1m spend.
3.5. On award of the contract Flintshire Council’s Enterprise and Regeneration Team 

will manage the delivery of the Community Benefit, including where appropriate 
receipt of any financial sums and subsequent expenditure in line with the Councils 
strategic priorities, and the co-ordination of wider community benefit delivery.

3.6. Flintshire County Council will apply the benchmarks set by Value Wales toolkit and 
use the principles for measuring the impact.

4. Priorities

4.1. All community benefits should aim to provide as wide an impact as feasible both in 
terms of geography and beneficiaries. The priority for community benefits are set 
out below.
Economic

I. Targeted recruitment and training:

• Providing shared apprenticeship opportunities;

• Creating job opportunities for unemployed people from Flintshire’s Community First 
areas;

• Providing work placements and training opportunities to local unemployed people, to 
help them gain work experience to aid their job search;

• Providing work experience to students to help them make career choices.
II. Supporting procuring from locally based businesses (where appropriate and this 

enables better value for money delivery of the contract) to provide goods and 
services in the delivery of the contract; 

Environmental, health and social
III. Working with schools and colleges to contribute to their curriculum and help to 

promote a socially inclusive society;
IV. Where deemed appropriate, small community-focused contributions can be made 

including actual resources such as staff time to provide assistance / support to 
local community groups.  This would be administered through the Economy and 
Regeneration Team to ensure appropriate use.

V. Provide a financial sum (where appropriate) or equivalent non-financial benefit to 
deliver the strategic priorities as identified by Flintshire Council including but not 
exclusively: 

• Housing quality and renewable technologies as part of any new build development;

Tudalen 31



Community Benefits Strategy Final Draft for Cabinet October 2017

4 

• Housing energy measures which will address fuel poverty;

• Promoting energy efficiencies and environmental awareness with tenants;

• Delivery of environmental initiatives including:

‣micro-energy generation;

‣reduced waste to landfill;

‣recycling of eligible materials;

‣reduced water consumption; and

‣managing business mileage.
VI. Reductions in demand for public services including health and social care and 

community safety by:

• increasing the people supported to live independently; 

• reducing permanent admissions to residential or nursing care;

• reducing avoidable hospital admissions; and

• reducing anti-social behaviour and crime.
VII. Increasing the impact of volunteers in delivering public and community services 

by:

• increasing the number of new volunteers;

• increasing the number of volunteers placed with community groups; and

• increasing the number of young volunteers
VIII. Increasing the impact of community businesses in delivering public and 

community services by:

• increasing the number of new community businesses established;

• increasing the number of constituted groups developing into community businesses; 
and

• increasing the number of community assets sustained.

5. Allocation, Monitoring and Reporting

5.1. To ensure fairness and consistency across the whole county, the level of 
contributions will be managed through the contracting process and monitored by 
the Procurement Team.

5.2. The Enterprise and Regeneration Team will be responsible for monitoring the 
delivery of the community benefits either through the Contractor or the intermediary 
responsible for delivery, working closely with the Council’s Contract Programme 
Manager.

5.3. All performance indicators relating to Contractor Community Benefits will be 
monitored and reviewed by Cabinet on an annual basis.

5.4. This Strategy will be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure it continues to evolve 
with the service contracts and capital expenditure.

Tudalen 32



 ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 27th November 2017

Report Subject Welsh Public Library Standards : Review of Performance 
2016/17

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education

Report Author Chief Officer Organisational Change

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964 makes it a duty of the relevant Welsh 
Ministers “to superintend and promote the improvement of the public library 
service provided by local authorities…and to secure the proper discharge by local 
authorities of the functions in relation to libraries conferred upon them as library 
authorities under this Act”. Under the same Act, library authorities are required to 
“provide a comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons desiring to 
make use thereof”.

Since 2002, the Welsh Ministers have fulfilled this duty through the Welsh Public 
Library Standards (WPLS). Each set stands for a total of three years and individual 
frameworks have evolved to reflect the changing needs and expectations of public 
library users. We are currently operating within the fifth quality framework Libraries 
making a difference (2014-17). This report provides a review against performance 
in 2015/16 including the assessment from Welsh Government at Appendix A. 

In summary Flintshire as previously predicted last year has improved in 2016/17 
against the quality indicators with targets, now achieving 5 out of the 7, an 
increase from achieving 2 out of 7 in 2015/16. The Library Service is currently 
operating a model that as a Council we believe meets community needs. 
Recognition of this is shown within 99% of adults rating the service good or very 
good (second highest score in Wales) and children rating the service 10 out of 10 
(the highest score in Wales). However if further reductions are made due to 
continued austerity requirements from the United Kingdom government then the 
service will not be able to meet community needs and performance against these 
standards will significantly deteriorate. The resilience of the service as at risk and 
this is demonstrated as, while the service is able to achieve good performance 
with its current budget against core entitlements and the quality indicators with 
targets, performance across the remaining areas of the framework is mixed.

Tudalen 33

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



RECOMMENDATIONS

1 For Scrutiny to comment on progress of delivery against Welsh Public 
Library Standards.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 BACKGROUND INFORMATION – PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE 
STANDARDS

1.01 In 2017 the library service reported on performance for the third year of the 
fifth framework of Welsh Public Library Standards (WPLS) covering 2014-
17. The annual assessment of our performance is attached as Appendix A.

1.02 Introduced at a time of budgetary constraint, the current WPLS framework 
aims to provide opportunities for libraries to deliver services in innovative 
ways and the flexibility to make best use of the resources available to 
them. Library services contribute to a range of Welsh Government 
outcomes such as literacy, skills and learning, digital inclusion, poverty, 
health and well-being. Library provision spans these outcomes, offering a 
range of services which often support two or more of the outcomes 
simultaneously. The fifth framework has therefore been themed around 
four core service aspects:

 customers and communities;
 access for all; 
 learning for life; and
 leadership and development. 

Each aspect has a number of core entitlements and quality indicators 
associated with it. The 18 Core Entitlements outline what local residents 
can expect of their Library Service. They are designed to ensure that 
library services:

 Engage with customers and potential users
 Provide opportunities for individual and community development 

(1,2 & 3) 
 Are delivered from buildings and facilities which are welcoming, 

inclusive and fit for purpose (4,5,6 &7)
 Provide a range of resources and services to meet people’s 

needs (8,9,10,11,12 & 13)
 Are professionally managed with adequate resources (14, 15, 

16, 17 & 18)

There are 23 Quality Indicators. Not all are measured by a target, and 
authorities are required to report on data collected from user surveys, 
feedback, sampling and to use performance indicators such as visitor 
numbers, attendance at events and Ievel of ICT use.

1.02 When reporting to Committee in January 2017 against previous 
performance the conclusions detailed in this report stated.

(1) In 2015-16 Flintshire met 17 of the 18 core entitlements in full, and 
partially met 1. This is expected to be 18 in the next return as all 

Tudalen 34



service points will offer Wi-Fi.

(2) Of the 7 quality indicators which have targets Flintshire achieved:

2 in full 
 Location of service points and up to date reading material

4 in part
 Individual development – an improvement on last year with 

increased training and support, but will be met in full with formal 
training programme at all branches being introduced this year.

 Appropriate reading material – we fail to meet the indicator on this 
by spending more than specified on children’s material

 Online access - to be met in full this year with Wi-Fi available at all 
branches

 Staffing levels and qualifications – fail to meet staff per capita and 
professional staff per capita

 
Did not meet 1
Opening hours -The final year of reporting will meet this indicator as the 
extended library opening hours at the new library in Deeside are included.

1.03 The Annual Assessment Executive Summary for 2016/17 (see Appendix 
A) states 

“Flintshire met 17 of the 18 core entitlements in full and partially met 1
Of the 7 quality indicators which have targets, Flintshire achieved 5 in full, 
1 in part and could not provide data on one. This is an improvement on last 
year when only 2 were achieved in full. The completion of the programme 
to consolidate resources in to 7 hub libraries has seen some 
improvements this year with the targets relating to individual development, 
online access and opening hours now being fully achieved. The service 
has done well to maintain performance in general during the last few years 
of change.’

1.04 The improvement in performance against the quality indicators with targets 
since last year is with the three additional indicators being met as follows:

 QI 3 – Individual Development
 QI10 – On line access
 QI16 – Opening Hours per capita

1.05 While the main focus for our library service has been maintaining 
performance against core entitlements and improving performance against 
quality indicators with targets the report also considers relative 
performance against other Local Authorities across the four core service 
areas of the framework. Flintshire’s performance is varied with key areas 
highlighted below.
 

 Performance is relatively good on customer satisfaction, 
expenditure on materials, supply of requests within 7 days, and 
opening hours. 

 Areas of focus for the service identified through the return include 
Tudalen 35



physical and virtual visits and professional staffing levels.

Work to co-locate services in Holywell should make a difference in visitor 
numbers and recent changes to the staffing structure are intended to 
improve professional staffing levels.

1.06 The assessors report concludes that 

‘The completion of the programme to consolidate resources in to 7 hub 
libraries has seen some improvements this year with the targets relating to 
individual development, online access and opening hours now being fully 
achieved. The service has done well to maintain performance in general 
during the last few years of change. The continuing decline in staffing 
levels is disappointing but the data does correspond to a time when there 
were vacancies, and so it is hoped that this will improve over the next year. 
Stability and ongoing investment in the service will help embed recent 
improvements for the future.’

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Financial Implications 

No implications. 

2.02 Human Resource Implications 

No implications.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 No consultation carried out.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Key Risks and Mitigation

(1) Performance against standards reduces – current plans within 
existing budgets show that performance can be maintained, this will 
be monitored carefully, and if budgets from Welsh Government 
reduce then consideration will need to be given to where it is 
acceptable to reduce performance against the standards.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix A – Annual Assessment of Performance Against Welsh Public 
Library Standards.

Tudalen 36



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None

Contact Officers: Ian Bancroft / Kate Leonard
Telephone: 01352 704511
E-mail: ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk / kate.leonard@aura.wales

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Welsh Public Library Standards – the annual assessment of library 
service performance by Welsh Government.

Tudalen 37

mailto:ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk
mailto:kate.leonard@aura.wales


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 1 Flintshire 

Welsh Public Library Standards 2014-17 
 

Flintshire County Council 
 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 
 

This report has been prepared based on information provided in Flintshire’s annual return, 

case studies and narrative report submitted to Museums, Archives and Libraries Division 

of the Welsh Government. 

 

1) Executive summary 

Flintshire met 17 of the 18 core entitlements in full and partially met 1 

Of the 7 quality indicators which have targets, Flintshire achieved 5 in full, 1 in part and 

could not provide data on one. This is an improvement on last year when only 2 were 

achieved in full. 

The completion of the programme to consolidate resources in to 7 hub libraries has 

seen some improvements this year with the targets relating to individual development, 

online access and opening hours now being fully achieved. The service has done well 

to maintain performance in general during the last few years of change. The continuing 

decline in staffing levels is disappointing but the data does correspond to a time when 

there were vacancies, and so it is hoped that this will improve over the next year. 

Stability and ongoing investment in the service will help embed recent improvements 

for the future. 

• Flintshire carried out an impact survey in November 2014. 92% of children thought 

that the library helped them to learn and find things out; 81% of adults and 69% of 

children felt that the library made a difference to their lives. 

• Flintshire carried out a customer survey in November 2014, and achieved one of 

the highest levels of overall satisfaction, with 99% of adults rating the service as 

‘good’ or very good’. Ratings on individual elements of the service compare less 

favourably to other authorities, however. 

• Attendance at pre-arranged training sessions has more than doubled compared to 

last year, although the per capita level remains below the median for Wales. 

• Physical visits have declined slightly over the last year, with the number of virtual 

visits experiencing only a slight increase so that both per capita levels remain 

below the median of Wales as a whole. 

• Library membership has fallen significantly due to a cleansing of the data before 

the installation of a new LMS, with those members using only ICT facilities now 

included in the number of active borrowers which has resulted in an increase. 

• Despite reductions over the last year, the per capita levels of both total 

acquisitions and materials expenditure are among the highest in Wales. The 

proportion of expenditure accounted for by materials at Flintshire is the third 

highest in Wales. 

• Flintshire failed to meet the targets for both staffing levels overall and for 

Tudalen 39



 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 2 Flintshire 

professional staff, although it was noted that there were professional staff 

vacancies. The target for opening hours has been met, which is an improvement 

on last year. 

 

Considering the four areas in the framework (Customers and communities; Access for all; 

Learning for life; and Leadership and development) in comparison to the rest of Wales, 

Flintshire’s performance is relatively poor, with some notable exceptions in customer 

satisfaction, staff training and collection development. 

 

Compared to the previous year, there have been notable improvements in support for 

individual development, ICT provision and opening hours, but further falls in staffing are a 

cause for concern. 

 

2) Performance against the standards 

The standards framework comprises of core entitlements, quality indicators with targets, 

quality indicators with benchmarks and impact measures. Section 2 summarises 

achievements against the core entitlements, the quality indicators which have targets, the 

quality indicators showing performance against others, and impact measures. A narrative 

assessment of the authority’s performance is made in Section 3. 

 

a) Core entitlements 

Flintshire is meeting 17 of the 18 core entitlements in full and partially meeting 1. This is 

the same position as last year, although the detail has changed. Wi-Fi is now available in 

all service points; however the new library strategy is not yet available on the website, 

pending transfer to a Community Benefit Society (Aura Leisure and Libraries) later in 

2017. 

 

b) Quality indicators with targets 

There are 16 quality indicators (QI) within the framework. Of the 7 which have targets, 

Flintshire is achieving 5 in full, 1 in part and did not provide data for one of the indicators: 

 
Quality Indicator Met?  

QI 3 Individual development:  Met in full 

a) ICT support   

b) Skills training   

c) Information literacy   

d) E-government support    

e) Reader development   

QI 5 Location of service points  Met in full 

QI 8 Up-to-date reading material:  Met in full 

a) Acquisitions per capita    

 or Materials spend per capita   

b) Replenishment rate   

QI 9 Appropriate reading material:  n/a 

a) % of material budget on children    

b) % of material budget spent on Welsh   

Tudalen 40



 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 3 Flintshire 

Quality Indicator Met?  

 or Spend on Welsh per capita   

QI 10 Online access:  Met in full 

a) All service points   

 Computers per capita   

b) Wi-Fi provision   

QI 13 Staffing levels and qualifications:  Partially met 

a) Staff per capita    

b) Professional staff per capita    

c) Head of service qualification/training    

d) CPD percentage   

QI 16 Opening hours per capita  Met in full 

 

There is an improvement since last year in QIs 3, 10 and 16 which are now all fully met. 

 

c) Impact measures 

The framework contains three indicators which seek to gather evidence of the impact that 

using the library service has on people’s lives. Through these and other indicators it is 

possible to see how the library service is contributing towards educational, social, 

economic and health and wellbeing local and national agendas. These indicators do not 

have targets. Not all authorities collected data for the impact indicators, and ranks are 

included out of the numbers of respondents stated, where 1 is the highest scoring 

authority. 

 

Flintshire carried out an impact survey in November 2014. The percentage of attendees of 

training sessions who said that the training had helped them achieve their goals is based 

on a small sample of fewer than 100 feedback forms. 

 
Performance indicator  Rank Lowest Median Highest 

QI 1 Making a difference      

b) % of children who think that the library helps them 

learn and find things out: 

92% 11/19 68% 93% 100% 

e) % of adults who think that the library has made a 

difference to their lives: 

81% 14/19 36% 86% 97% 

 % of children who think that the library has made a 

difference to their lives: 

69% 11/17 58% 82% 98% 

QI 4 b) % of attendees of training sessions who said that 

the training had helped them achieve their goals: 

97% 8/19 80% 97% 100% 

 

Flintshire provided two impact case studies: 

 The success of the Deeside Library in attracting leisure centre users to the library, 

fostering a love of reading in previously reluctant readers. 

 A digital volunteers scheme providing the volunteers with accreditation for their 

Welsh Baccalaureate as well as increasing the skills of users. 

 

d) Quality performance indicators and benchmarks 

The remaining indicators do not have targets, but allow performance to be compared 

Tudalen 41



 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 4 Flintshire 

between authorities. The following table summarises Flintshire’s position for 2016-17. 

Ranks are included out of 22, where 1 is the highest, and 22 the lowest scoring authority, 

unless stated otherwise. Indicators where fewer than 22 authorities supplied data are 

those where relevant data elements were not available to some authorities. Figures 

reported in respect of the first two years of the framework for QI 4 to QI 16 are repeated for 

convenience of comparison. Note that indicators ‘per capita’ are calculated per 1,000 

population. 

 
Performance indicator  Rank Lowest Median Highest 2015/16 Rank 2014/15 Rank 

QI 1 Making a difference           

a) new skills 64% 13 /19 23% 71% 93%     

c) health and well-being 46% 13 /20 26% 56% 94%     

d) enjoyable, safe and 

inclusive 

94% 18 /19 93% 98% 100%     

QI 2 Customer satisfaction           

a) ‘very good’ or ‘good’ choice 

of books 

89% 12 /20 74% 90% 98%     

b) ‘very good’ or ‘good’ 

customer care 

96% 15 /20 90% 99% 100%     

c) ‘very good’ or ‘good’ overall 99% 2 /20 92% 97% 100%     

d) child rating out of ten 10.0 1 /19 8.6 9.1 10.0     

QI 4 User training           

a) attendances per capita 29 15  3 34 248 11 20 5 21 

c) informal training per capita 162 10 /20 1 156 712 n/k  n/k  

QI 6 Library use           

a) visits per capita 3,935 12  2,453 4,033 6,751 3,963 12 4,317 10 

b) virtual visits per capita 453 18 /21 341 922 2,299 442 18 403 20 

c) active borrowers per capita 127 16  77 153 235 105 20 122 17 

QI 7 attendances at events per 

capita 

151 16  62 214 496 131 16 152 14 

QI 11 Use of ICT - % of available 

time used by the public 

          

a) equipment 16% 21 /21 16% 32% 69% 20% 22 28% 19 

QI 12 Supply of requests           

a) % available within 7 days 76%* 5 /21 48% 70% 82% 70% 15 75% 6 

b) % available within 15 days 82%* 15 /21 65% 85% 96% 82% 16 88% 5 

QI 13 Staffing levels and 

qualifications 

          

(v) a) total volunteers 26 10  0 24 209 9 17 0 17 

b) total volunteer hours 386 16  0 798 5,156 116 20 0 17 

QI 14 Operational expenditure           

a) total expenditure per capita £10,28

1 

17 /21 £6,745 £11,979 £16,968 £11,188 16 / 21 £11,695 19 

b) % on staff 59% 9 /21 46% 58% 75% 61% 9 / 21 60% 9 

% on information resources 21% 3 /21 4% 13% 25% 22% 2 / 21 16% 5 

% on equipment and 

buildings 

5% 7 /21 0% 4% 20% 5% 7 / 21 16% 4 

% on other operational 

costs 

15% 13 /21 9% 22% 37% 13% 16 / 21 7% 20 

c) capital expenditure per £723 8 /21 £0 £341 £16,692 £564 9 / 21 £0 16 

Tudalen 42



 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 5 Flintshire 

Performance indicator  Rank Lowest Median Highest 2015/16 Rank 2014/15 Rank 

capita 

QI 15 Net cost per visit £2.24 13 /20 £1.50 £2.33 £3.30 £2.43 11 / 21 £2.35 8 / 11 

QI 16 Opening hours (see note)           

(ii) a) % hours unplanned 

closure of static service points 

0.07% 5  0.00% 0.00% 0.48% 0.00% 12 0.10% 16 

b) % mobile stops / home 

deliveries missed 

0.37% 6 /19 0.00% 0.13% 8.33% 0.86% 12 / 19 0.42% 11 / 19 

Note: Rankings here have been reversed, so that 1 is the lowest scoring (best performing) authority. 

* By agreement with MALD, figures are based on the first three months of the year only due to the mid-year 

implementation of a new library management system. 

 

Data on Wi-Fi usage has only been provided by three authorities for 2016-17 and so is not 

included in the table above. 

 

3) Analysis of performance  

The core entitlements and quality indicators are divided into four key areas. This section of 

the report outlines performance against the quality indicators within these four areas, and 

compares results with those from the first two years of the framework.  

 

a) Customers and communities 

Flintshire carried out a customer survey in November 2014, and detailed comment was 

included in the 2014-15 report. The restructuring to concentrate resources in 7 hub 

libraries has now been completed and sees Flintshire meet the target with all service 

points providing the full range of services in support of individual development. Attendance 

at pre-arranged training sessions has more than doubled compared to last year, although 

the per capita level remains below the median for Wales as a whole. 

 

b) Access for all 

Flintshire meets the target for easy access to service points, but visits per capita have 

fallen slightly compared to 2015-16 so that the per capita levels remain below the median 

for Wales. The number of virtual visits per capita has increased slightly, however, the 

number of virtual visits per capita remains among the lowest in Wales. The introduction of 

a new LMS provided the opportunity to cleanse membership data, and as a result the 

number of library members has almost halved since last year. The number of active 

members has increased, however, and includes those users that have accessed the IT 

facilities in libraries only, although the per capita figure remains below the median for 

Wales.  

 

c) Learning for life 

Flintshire has met the targets for the number of acquisitions and materials expenditure in 

2016-17, despite a 10% decrease in the latter. Acquisitions per capita were the third 

highest in Wales, with materials expenditure per capita the fourth highest. Detail was not 

provided on expenditure on those items for children or materials in the Welsh language 

due to changing to a new library management system during the year. 

 

All libraries now provide ICT facilities, but these are not well used, with the lowest 

percentage take-up in Wales. Due to the adoption of a new LMS and the impact this had 

on the delivery of requests, data is only based on the first quarter (April-June). The 

Tudalen 43



 

Annual Assessment Report 2016-17 6 Flintshire 

percentage of requests satisfied within 7 days appears to have improved compared to last 

year, and is the fifth highest in Wales. 

 

d) Leadership and development 

Staffing has been further reduced in 2016-17, and Flintshire fails to meet the targets for 

staffing levels overall and for professional staff, which remains an area of concern. 

However, the authority has indicated that on 31st March there were 2.5 FTE professional 

posts vacant. The head of the service is a Chartered Librarian. Despite a decrease of 18% 

over last year, Flintshire continues to meet the staff training target, and the proportion of 

staff hours spent in training remains above the median of Wales as a whole. The number 

of volunteers in Flintshire’s libraries has almost trebled over last year, with 26 giving an 

average of 15 hours of service. Training was provided for all young volunteers supporting 

the Summer Reading Challenge and additional training was provided by Digital 

Communities Wales for the digital volunteers.  

 

Total revenue expenditure has decreased by 8% over the last year, with all areas 

experiencing decreases, except for other operational costs which experienced a slight 

increase. Despite a decrease, the proportion of revenue expenditure accounted for by 

materials is the third highest in Wales at 59%. Aggregate opening hours have increased 

over the last year and it is noted that this is partially due to the inclusion of two libraries 

located within leisure centres which enabled the libraries to extend their opening hours.  

 

4) Strategic context 

Flintshire library service provided a detailed statement concerning its contribution to the 

strategic goals of the local authority and Welsh Government focusing on the areas of 

accessibility, lifelong learning, cohesive communities, health and wellbeing, and cultural 

heritage. 

 

5) Future direction 

Flintshire is preparing to transfer out of local authority control to a Community Benefit 

Society (Aura) from summer 2017. A 10% reduction in overall funding from the council will 

continue. In preparation, the service has been restructured, with a new libraries support 

officer post providing frontline staff with a channel for career progression and to instil 

succession planning throughout the staffing structure. The company will work co-

operatively with the Council with a Partnership Board reviewing overall performance 

including against WPLS with the intent of sustaining library services and library 

performance. 

 

6) Conclusion 

The completion of the programme to consolidate resources in to 7 hub libraries has seen 

some improvements this year with the targets relating to individual development, online 

access and opening hours now being fully achieved. The service has done well to maintain 

performance in general during the last few years of change. The continuing decline in 

staffing levels is disappointing but the data does correspond to a time when there were 

vacancies, and so it is hoped that this will improve over the next year. Stability and 

ongoing investment in the service will help embed recent improvements for the future. 

Tudalen 44



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 27th November, 2017

Report Subject Mid-Year Council Plan 2017/18 Monitoring Report

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Cabinet Member for Education

Report Author Chief Officer (Organisational Change 1)
Chief Officer (Organisational Change 2)

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council Plan 2017/23 was adopted by the Council in September 2017. This 
report presents the mid-year monitoring of progress for the Council Plan priority 
‘Connected Council’ relevant to the Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee.

Flintshire is a high performing Council as evidenced in previous Council 
(Improvement) Plan monitoring reports as well as in the Council’s Annual 
Performance Reports. This first monitoring report for the 2017/18 Council Plan is a 
positive report, with 88% of activities being assessed as making good progress, and 
67% likely to achieve the desired outcome. In addition, 65% of the performance 
indicators met or exceeded target. Risks are also being successfully managed with 
the majority being assessed as moderate (67%) or minor (8%).

This report is an exception based report and therefore detail focuses on the areas of 
under-performance.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee consider the Council Plan 2017/18 mid-year monitoring 
report to monitor under performance and request further information as 
appropriate.

Tudalen 45

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE COUNCIL PLAN 2017/23 MONITORING REPORT

1.01 The Council Plan monitoring reports give an explanation of the progress being 
made toward the delivery of the impacts set out in the 2017/23 Council Plan. 
The narrative is supported by performance indicators and / or milestones 
which evidence achievement. In addition, there is an assessment of the 
strategic risks and the level to which they are being controlled.

1.02 This is an exception based report and detail therefore focuses on the areas of 
under-performance.

1.03 Monitoring our Activities
Each of the sub-priorities have high level activities which are monitored over 
time. ‘Progress’ monitors progress against scheduled activity and has been 
categorised as follows: -

 RED: Limited Progress – delay in scheduled activity; not on track
 AMBER: Satisfactory Progress – some delay in scheduled activity, but 

broadly on track
 GREEN: Good Progress – activities completed on schedule, on track

A RAG status is also given as an assessment of our level of confidence at this 
point in time in achieving the ‘outcome(s)’ for each sub-priority. Outcome has 
been categorised as: -

 RED: Low – lower level of confidence in the achievement of the 
outcome(s)

 AMBER: Medium – uncertain level of confidence in the achievement of 
the outcome(s)

 GREEN: High – full confidence in the achievement of the outcome(s)

1.04 In summary our overall progress against the high level activities is: -

ACTIVITES PROGRESS
 We are making good (green) progress in 51 (88%).
 We are making satisfactory (amber) progress in 7 (12%).

ACTIVITIES OUTCOME
 We have a high (green) level of confidence in the achievement of 39 

(67%).
 We have a medium (amber) level of confidence in the achievement of 

19 (33%).
 We have a low (red) level of confidence in the achievement of 0 (0%).

1.05 Monitoring our Performance
Analysis of performance against the Improvement Plan performance 
indicators is undertaken using the RAG (Red, Amber Green) status. This is 
defined as follows: -

Tudalen 46



 RED equates to a position of under-performance against target.
 AMBER equates to a mid-position where improvement may have been 

made but performance has missed the target. 
 GREEN equates to a position of positive performance against target.

1.06 Analysis of current levels of performance shows the following: -
 46 (65%) had achieved a green RAG status
 18 (25%) had achieved an amber RAG status
 7 (10%) had achieved a red RAG status

1.07 The performance indicator (PI) which showed a red RAG status for current 
performance relevant to the Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee is: -

Priority: Connected Council
PI: Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement 
contracts under £1M

The Council’s current Contract Procurement Regulations stipulates that the 
inclusion of Community Benefits is optional for contracts below £1m as 
referenced within the Welsh Procurement Policy statement. The Council has 
currently drafted a new Community Benefits Strategy which will require 
Community Benefits to be included when applicable for lower value contracts.

Until the new Community Benefits Strategy has been approved and adopted 
by the Council, then the percentage target of contracts below £1m with 
Community Benefits included will be missed.

1.08 Monitoring our Risks
Analysis of the current risk levels for the strategic risks identified in the 
Improvement Plan is as follows: -

 1 (2%) is insignificant (green)
 4 (8%) are minor (yellow) 
 32 (67%) are moderate (amber)
 11 (23%) are major (red)
 0 (0%) are severe (black)

1.09 There are no major (red) risk areas identified for the Organisational Change 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 There are no specific resource implications for this report. 

Tudalen 47



3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 The Council Plan Priorities are monitored by the appropriate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees according to the priority area of interest.

3.02 Chief Officers have contributed towards reporting of relevant information.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Progress against the risks identified in the Council Plan is included in the 
report at Appendix 1. Summary information for the risks assessed as major 
(red) is covered in paragraphs 1.07 and 1.09 above.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 - Council Plan 2017/18 Mid-Year Progress Report – Connected 
Council.  

6.00 SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
List of Accessible Background Documents

6.01 Council Plan 2017/18: http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-
and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx

Contact Officer: Ceri Shotton
Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the 
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 
to set Improvement Objectives and publish a Council Plan.

Risks: These are assessed using the improved approach to risk 
management endorsed by Audit Committee in June 2015. The new approach, 
includes the use of a new and more sophisticated risk assessment matrix 
which provides greater opportunities to show changes over time.

Tudalen 48

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk


7.03

The new approach to risk assessment was created in response to 
recommendations in the Corporate Assessment report from the Wales Audit 
Office and Internal Audit.

Tudalen 49



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Mid-year Council Plan 2017/18 Progress Report
Connected Council
Flintshire County Council

Print Date: 07-Nov-2017

T
udalen 51



5 Connected Council
Actions

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.1 Build stronger social enterprises with the sector 
itself leading development of the sector

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 50.00%

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
To help grow the sector and sustain itself specific contracts and community benefits work is being targeted at the sector. The development of a range of tools such as community shares 
is underway that enable existing social enterprises to grow and develop. Projects that are applicable for community shares have been identified and a business case format for these 
has been developed. Social enterprises attended the Flintshire Business awards and for the first time won a significant award. Wider plan for developing tools for the social enterprise 
sector shared with the public service board and is forming part of their Community Resilience Action Plan 

Last Updated: 25-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.2 Grow the capacity of the social enterprise sector 
and Alternative delivery Models (ADM's) to become 
more self-sustaining.

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 66.00%

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
Work has taken place with key social enterprises to strengths their business plans. This includes establishing two new social enterprises of a significant scale operating in Flintshire 
through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme. Aura Leisure and Libraries and Holywelll Leisure Centre were established and have been operating from the 1st 
September and 1st April respectively. Reporting of community benefits - Meetings held with organisations who had had asset transfers in 2015 to 2017 and first year reports provided 
on community benefits, these will be reported to Scrutiny whey community asset transfers are next reported 

Last Updated: 25-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.3 Implement the Digital Strategy and resources to 
meet future customer needs

Richard Ashley - IT Business 
Relationship Manager

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 25.00%

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 2 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 52



ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
Progress is steady across all 6 work streams to identify those projects that can and should be progressed as a matter of priority, and a number have already identified their priorities for 
inclusion the action plan. The Digital Customer work stream has already analysed the services which receive the most public contact and is prioritising a list of those services that should 
be digitised first. The action plan will be ready for approval in December. For this first year of the 5 year strategy there are currently 22 tasks identified and of those, 5 are marked as 
complete.

Last Updated: 02-Nov-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.4 Ensuring and delivering community benefits Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 50.00%

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
Draft community benefits strategy in place and ready to take to cabinet in October. Session planned with procurement team and economic development team to enable them to take 
strategy forward.

Last Updated: 23-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.5 Enabling the third sector to maximise their 
contribution.

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 50.00%

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
Community Benefits Strategy developed with specific social objectives that enable the social sector to show their unique delivery and value against. FLVC and the communities first 
social enterprise officer are delivering specific support to the sector including supporting the establishment of community asset transfers.

Last Updated: 23-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.6 Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their 
families are not disadvantaged when accessing Council 
Services

Karen Armstrong - Corporate 
Business and Communications 
Executive Officer

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 50.00%

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 3 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 53



ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
The partnership group driving the work forward of Flintshire's Armed Forces Covenant has made good progress during the last 6 months. Developments and achievements within the 
Council include: - new policy for Reservists in the Council to be supported with an additional 2 weeks annual leave to attend services-related training - Council HR recruitment policy 
revised to include guaranteed interview to all veterans meeting the essential criteria - agreement to capture data from schools about pupils from serving or veteran families to i) 
understand the scale of support needed and ii) plan support including funding - co-ordination and support of Covenant funding applications within local communities - North Wales Fire 
and Rescue Services signed up to Flintshire's Covenant - first Annual report endorsed by full County Council - 2 Armed Forces liaison officers appointed for regional co-ordination of the 
Covenants. Good support provided since appointments. 

Last Updated: 27-Oct-2017

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE
% 

PROGRESS 
RAG

OUTCOME 
RAG

5.1.1.7 Getting Flintshire active through partnership 
objectives via the Public Services Board

Karen Armstrong - Corporate 
Business and Communications 
Executive Officer

In 
Progress

01-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2018 25.00%

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
The Public Services Board has drafted a Well-being Plan which has 5 priority areas of work including: Community Resilience, Well-being and Independent Living, Community Safety, 
Economy and Skills and Environment. The Community Resilience priority has a number of work-streams, one of which is 'Getting Flintshire moving'. This priority area is led by Public 
Health Wales with 2 specific activities around reducing sedentary behaviour; one of which is focused on the scale of impact that could be made across the public sector as a major 
employer and within specific community areas (as pilots). This is a longer term project which may not show immediate impact in-year, hence the amber rating for outcome.

Last Updated: 27-Oct-2017

Performance Indicators

KPI Title
Pre. Year 

Period 
Actual

Period 
Actual

Period 
Target Perf. RAG

Perf. 
Indicator 

Trend
YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

IP5.1.2.4M04 The number of leisure centres 
and libraries sustained through the 
community benefits society

11 11 11 11 11

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 4 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 54



Lead Officer: Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - Organisational Change 1
Reporting Officer: Paul Jones - Leisure Manager Business Improvement
Aspirational Target: 
Progress Comment: From 1 September 2017, Aura Leisure & Libraries Limited is responsible for the direct management of the following leisure centres and libraries: Buckley Leisure 
Centre, Deeside Leisure Centre, Jade Jones Pavilion Flint, Mold Leisure Centre, Broughton Library (service only, not the building), Buckley Library, Connah’s Quay Library, Flint Library, 
Holywell Library (service only within a shared building), Deeside Library (based within Deeside Leisure Centre) and Mold Library.  Aura Leisure and Libraries Limited is registered under 
the Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 (Registration No. 7610).

Additional Information:
From 1 April 2017, Holywell Leisure Centre/Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon (Registered Charity: 1170729) is responsible for the direct management of Holywell Leisure Centre.

From 30 May 2016, Cambrian Aquatic Sports Centre (Company No: 09913641) is responsible for the direct management of Connah's Quay Swimming Pool.  Cambrian ASC is a private 
company limited by guarantee without share capital.

Last Updated: 09-Oct-2017

KPI Title
Pre. Year 

Period 
Actual

Period 
Actual

Period 
Target Perf. RAG

Perf. 
Indicator 

Trend
YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

IP5.1.4.1M01 Percentage of community 
benefit clauses in new procurement 
contracts above £1M

No Data 100 100 100 100

Lead Officer: Gareth Owens - Chief Officer - Governance
Reporting Officer: Arwel Staples - Strategic Procurement Manager
Aspirational Target: 
Progress Comment: 7 projects to date above £1m have been tendered and include community benefits.

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

KPI Title
Pre. Year 

Period 
Actual

Period 
Actual

Period 
Target Perf. RAG

Perf. 
Indicator 

Trend
YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

IP5.1.4.2M02 Percentage of community 
benefit clauses in new procurement 
contracts under £1M

No Data 0 100 0 100

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 5 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 55



Lead Officer: Gareth Owens - Chief Officer - Governance
Reporting Officer: Arwel Staples - Strategic Procurement Manager
Aspirational Target: 
Progress Comment: The Council’s current Contract Procurement Regulations stipulates that the inclusion of Community Benefits is optional for contracts below £1m as referenced 
within the Welsh Procurement Policy statement. The Council has currently drafted a new Community Benefits Strategy which will require Community Benefits to be included when 
applicable for lower value contracts. 

Until the new Community Benefits Strategy has been approved and adopted by the Council, then the percentage  target of contracts below £1m with Community Benefits included will 
be missed.

Last Updated: 01-Nov-2017

RISKS
Strategic Risk

RISK
TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK

 RATING
CURRENT RISK

 RATING
TREND 
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

The capacity and appetite of the community and 
social sectors

Ian Bancroft - Chief 
Officer - Organisational 

Change 1

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

Open

Potential Effect:  Lack of capacity to and desire of the sector resulting in unsustainable community and social sector projects such as Community Asset Transfers and Alternative Delivery 
Models
Management Controls:  Work with Flintshire CVS, Co-operative Wales, and local community groups and social enterprises to develop skills.
Progress Comment:  Sustained progress on growth of the social sector with development of new Community Asset Transfers and Alternativedelivery Models, now the emphasis will be 
on sustaining this delivery and maximising its impact

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

RISK
TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK

 RATING
CURRENT RISK

 RATING
TREND 
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

The willingness of the workforce and Trade Unions to 
embrace change

Ian Bancroft - Chief 
Officer - Organisational 

Change 1

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

Open

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 6 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 56



Potential Effect:  Lack of capacity of staff to work with and enable social sector organisations to grow and develop
Management Controls:  Early engagement and co-design in change projects with employees and trade unions
Progress Comment:  This is a key priority of the Community Resilience priority of the Public Services Board working with all public service staff to support growth of the social sector. 

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

RISK
TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK

 RATING
CURRENT RISK

 RATING
TREND 
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

Market conditions which the new alternative delivery 
models face

Ian Bancroft - Chief 
Officer - Organisational 

Change 1

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

Open

Potential Effect:  More competition from other agencies or decreasing use of the services means they are in the future unsustainable
Management Controls:  Continue to work with the ADM's to grow their entrepreneurial skills and meet with them annually at least to review progress
Progress Comment:  Now established review are planned with each of the ADMs.

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

RISK
TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK

 RATING
CURRENT RISK

 RATING
TREND 
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

Limitations on public funding to subsidise alternative 
models

Ian Bancroft - Chief 
Officer - Organisational 

Change 1

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

Open

Potential Effect:  Reductions in funding to these models by the public sector resulting in the new to stop or close services and facilities
Management Controls:  Support to ADM's to ensure their financial plans are resilient if public funding decreases
Progress Comment:  Review meetings are providing an update on the future financial context so organisations can plan for potential reductions when appropriate.

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

RISK
TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK

 RATING
CURRENT RISK

 RATING
TREND 
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 7 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 57



Procurement regulations stifling our ability to develop 
local community and third sector markets

Ian Bancroft - Chief 
Officer - Organisational 

Change 1

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

Open

Potential Effect:  Social and third sector organisation not able to grow through the winning of new contracts
Management Controls:  Work with procurement and commissioning teams to identify the most effective way of working with the community and third sectors.
Progress Comment:  Draft Community Benefits Strategy agreed by Cabinet and workshop held with the procurement team to start implementation of this strategy. 

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

RISK
TITLE LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK

 RATING
CURRENT RISK

 RATING
TREND 
ARROW

RISK
STATUS

Newly established Social Enterprises and Community 
Asset Transfers failing in their early stages of 
development.

Ian Bancroft - Chief 
Officer - Organisational 

Change 1

Ian Bancroft - Chief Officer - 
Organisational Change 1

Open

Potential Effect:  
Management Controls:  Open book accounting by key social enterprises with the council and where issues identified cooperative work to resolve these.
Progress Comment:  Review meetings held with all CATs that transferred 2015-17. 

Last Updated: 24-Oct-2017

07-Nov-2017 CAMMS Page 8 of 8

Date From:01/04/2017 To:30/09/2017Flintshire County Council

T
udalen 58



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 27th November, 2017

Report Subject Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Member Not applicable

Report Author Community & Education Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work 
Programme between meetings, as the need arises. 

3 That the Committee considers the options on meeting time preference, to 
feedback to the Constitution & Democratic Services Committee.

Tudalen 59

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 7



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number of 
sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be 
referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council or 
Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work 
Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

1.03 At the meeting of  the Constitution & Democratic Services Committee which 
was held on 25th October,  it was resolved  that each committee should be 
canvassed for views on meeting preference  as part of their  forward work 
programme item. The options are as follows: 

9.30am 10am 1.30pm 2pm 4.30pm 6.00pm Alternate 
am/pm

Rotate
10am/2pm/  
4.30pm

Rotate 
am/
pm/ 
6pm

The Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny committee, which currently 
meets on a Monday morning at 10.00, is asked to express a preference for 
its meeting pattern. This information will be reported back to the 
Constitution & Democratic Services Committee.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

Tudalen 60



5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Ceri Shotton
Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 61

mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 1 of 2

DATE SUBJECT O&S FOCUS REPORT FROM

Monday 18th 
December 2017 
10am

Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool Community 
Asset transfer review 

Forward Work Programme – extended item to 
agree work areas for the coming months. 

Monitoring and assurance

Development and approval

Ian Bancroft/Neal 
Cockerton

Ceri Shotton / Margaret 
Parry-Jones

Monday 29th 
January 2018
10am

Social Care ADM Review (Part 2)
(members of the Social & Healthcare Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee could be invited to attend for this 
item) 

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and assurance
Monitoring and assurance

Development and approval

Neal Cockerton/Ian 
Bancroft

Ceri Shotton / Margaret 
Parry-Jones

Monday 19th 
March 2018  
2pm

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan Monitoring Report

NEWydd 

Aura 

Forward Work programme

Monitoring and assurance

Monitoring and assurance

Monitoring and Assurance

Development and approval 

Neal Cockerton/Ian 
Bancroft

Ian Bancroft/Neal 
Cockerton

Ian Bancroft/Neal 
Cockerton

Ceri Shotton / Margaret 
Parry-Jones

T
udalen 63



Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 2 of 2

Monday 14th May 
2018     10.00 am

Holywell Community Asset Transfer

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and Assurance

Development and approval

Ian Bancroft/Neal 
Cockerton

Ceri Shotton / Margaret 
Parry-Jones

Monday 25th June 
2018       2.00 pm

New areas of work going forward (tbc)

Forward Work Programme Development and approval Ceri Shotton / Margaret 
Parry-Jones

T
udalen 64


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	Minutes - Org Change 09.10.2017 final English

	4 Gwydnwch Cymunedol a Strategaeth Budd Cymunedol
	Enc. 1 - PSB Draft Plan for Resilient Communities
	Enc. 2 - Community Benefits Strategy

	5 Safonau Llyfrgelloedd Cyhoeddus Cymru: Adolygiad Perfformiad 2016/17
	Enc. 1 - Annual assessment against Standards

	6 Cynllun y Cyngor 2017/18 - Monitro canol blwyddyn
	Appendix 1 - Council Plan 2017/18 Mid-Year Progress Report – Connected Council

	7 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol
	Appendix 1 - Draft Forward Work Programme


